
Board of Supervisors Meeting     *    March 4, 2025    *     Page 1 
 

 
TAZEWELL COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

REGULAR MEETING 

 

 
March 4, 2025 – 4:00 P.M. (Tuesday) 

197 MAIN STREET 
TAZEWELL, VIRGINIA 24651 

 
Members of the public also have an option to participate by telephone by calling (425) 436-6388, 
and entering "836650" as the access code when prompted. 
 

Time      Subject      Pg 
4:00 pm 1. Call to Order 

2. Pledge and Invocation 
3. Welcome 
4. Consideration of approving the agenda format (additions/deletions) 
5. Approval of meeting minutes from February 4, 2025 

 
 
       
 
 
4 

4:05 pm 6.  Consent Calendar 
(All items on the consent calendar are considered to be routine matters. The following 
items may be enacted by one motion, with the concurrence of the Board of Supervisors, 
a member may request that an item be removed for further discussion) 

A. Approval of Warrants 
B. County Departments - Transfer the following amounts from the 

Contingent Expenditures and Grant Account No. 91050-7041 to various 
department accounts as shown on the attached table. 

C. Consider authorizing the Tazewell County Chamber of Commerce to use 
Cavitts Creek Park exclusively July 19 and July 20, 2025 

D. Ratify poll approving support letters for Gigabeam, Verizon and Point 
Broadband applications for BEAD grant funding to expand internet 
service in the County 

E. Consider transfer from the Contingent Grant Account 4-100-091050-
7041 to 4-100-035050-8109 Capital Outlay - Grant Proceeds for 
payment of RES invoices  

F. Consider transfer of $30,254.25 from the Contingent grant account 4-
100-091050-7041to Engineering budget 

 
 
 
 
15 
17 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
18 
 
 
23 

4:10 pm 7.  Department Reports 
► Kenneth Dunford – Engineering Report 

 
 
 

1

callto:425)%20436-6388


Board of Supervisors Meeting     *    March 4, 2025    *     Page 2 
 

4:20 pm 8. Executive/Closed Meeting - Pursuant to Virginia Code Section 2.2-3711 
A( 7)  Discussion regarding diabetes litigation 
A( 3)  Property acquisition at Cavitts Creek 
A( 5)  Project FIND 

 

5:00 pm 9. Special Presentations 
► Christina Shinall resolution 
► GHS Cheerleaders resolution 
► Red Cross proclamation 
► Audit presentation 
► TCPS sequestered funds status report 
► Sheriff’s fleet 
► Chief Barry Brooks – fire protection presentation 

 
24 
25 
26 

 
6:05 pm 
6:10 pm 
6:15 pm 
6:20 pm 

10.  Public Hearings 
► Public hearing regarding real estate tax rate 
► Public hearing regarding closure of Amonate voting precinct 
► Public hearing regarding relocation of Mundy Town voting precinct  
► Public hearing regarding implementation of a meals tax 

 
 
27 
28 
29 
30 
 

6:30 pm 11. Citizen Comments – Scheduled 
This portion of the agenda is set aside for citizens wishing to comment 
on County issues who have previously requested to speak at the 
meeting pursuant to the three (3) minute limit to communications. 
►  Carolyn Wimmer – Salina Road 
►  Michaelle Gravley - Amonate 

 

6:40 pm 12. Citizen Comments – Unscheduled 
(Two (2) minutes per speaker) 

 

6:45 pm 13. Administrative/Financial/County Projects Update 
1. State of emergency 

a. Consider designating Emergency Management Administrator 
as Deputy Coordinator for Emergency Management. 

2. Storm recovery update 
3. United Way grant 
4. Earmark applications 
5. Opioid Abuse Abatement Committee update 
6. Budget update 
7. Repair/removal of dilapidated structures 
8. SonShine Day Care funding request 
9. 4H camp scholarship request 
10. Tazewell Baseball Boosters funding request 
11. Tazewell Little League Baseball/Softball funding request 
12. Other 
13. Appointments: 

a. Fire/Rescue Board 
b. IDA 
c. Tourism 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
31 
32 
33 
 
 
 
34 
 
35 

7:15 pm 
 

14. Board Concerns 
 Supervisor Presley: 
►  

 
 
 

2



Board of Supervisors Meeting     *    March 4, 2025    *     Page 3 
 

Supervisor Plaster: 
►  
 
Supervisor Cruey: 
►   
 
Supervisor Gillespie: 
► Payment for mowing expense at Thompson Valley Community Center 

 
Supervisor Hrovatic:  
►   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
37 
 
 
 

7:30 pm 15. Executive/Closed Meeting – Pursuant to Virginia Code Section 2.2-3711 
► A(1)  Personnel in legal department 
► A(2)  Proposed evaluations/negotiations for rehabilitative housing 

 

8:30 pm 16. Return/Certification/Report of Action (if necessary)  
9:35 pm 17. Other business as may properly come before the Board  
9:45 pm 18. Adjourn 

The meeting is adjourned until Tuesday, April 8, 2025 at 4:00 p.m. 
 

 

3



 

BOS Meeting     *     February 4, 2025     *     Page 1 
 

VIRGINIA: AT THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE TAZEWELL COUNTY BOARD OF 
SUPERVISORS HELD FEBRUARY 4, 2025 AT FOUR O'CLOCK P.M. IN THE 
TAZEWELL COUNTY ADMINISTRATION BUILDING, 197 MAIN STREET, 
TAZEWELL, VIRGINIA 24651 

PRESENT: AARON GILLESPIE, CHAIRMAN 
KYLE CRUEY, VICE-CHAIRPERSON 
ANDY HROVATIC, MEMBER  
CHUCK PRESLEY, MEMBER 
SHANNA PLASTER, MEMBER 
C. ERIC YOUNG, COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR 
CHASE D. COLLINS, COUNTY ATTORNEY 
SUSAN JEWELL, EXECUTIVE ASSISTANT 
MEMBERS OF THE PRESS:  JIM TALBERT, RICHLANDS NEWS & PRESS, 
WARREN HINKLE, THE VOICE 
 

ABSENT:  None 
 

MINUTES 

Chairman, Aaron Gillespie called the regular meeting to order and presided with all other members present. 

Supervisor Hrovatic led The Pledge of Allegiance to the United States flag followed by the invocation given by 
Supervisor Cruey. 

Chairman Gillespie welcomed those in attendance and citizens who were participating by conference call. 
Citizens were able to call in and participate in the meeting by calling (425) 436-6388 and entering the access 
code 836650. 

AGENDA APPROVED AS AMENDED 
The Chairperson called for any additions/deletions to the agenda. 

Eric Young, County Administrator, requested to add two (2) additional items to the second executive session: 

A(1)  Personnel in Administration 
A(1)  Personnel in Administration 
 
Upon motion of Supervisor Cruey, seconded by Supervisor Plaster and adopted by a vote of 5 to 0, with all 
members present and voting in favor thereof and no one against the same, the Tazewell County Board of 
Supervisors approved the February 4, 2025 amended agenda with additions/deletions, a copy of which is 
available at the County Administration Office, 197 Main Street, Tazewell, Virginia 24651. 

MINUTES APPROVED AS WRITTEN 
Upon motion of Supervisor Hrovatic, seconded by Supervisor Presley and adopted by a vote of 5 to 0, with all 
members present and voting in favor thereof and no one against the same, the Tazewell County Board of 

4



 

BOS Meeting     *     February 4, 2025 minutes     *     Page 2 
 

Supervisors hereby approves the minutes from the January 7, 2025 meeting.  A copy is available in the County 
Administration Office, 197 Main Street, Tazewell, Virginia 24651. 
 
CONSENT CALENDAR 
Upon motion of Supervisor Presley seconded by Supervisor Hrovatic and adopted by a vote of 5 to 0 with all 
members present and voting in favor thereof and no one against the same, the Tazewell County Board of 
Supervisors hereby approves all items of the Consent Calendar.  The County Administrator is authorized to 
issue warrants in accordance with this action and said warrants shall be converted to negotiable checks by the 
Treasurer of Tazewell County, Virginia. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Consent Calendar 
(All items on the consent calendar are considered to be routine matters. The following 
items may be enacted by one motion, with the concurrence of the Board of Supervisors, 
a member may request that an item be removed for further discussion) 

A. Approval of Warrants 
B. County Departments - Transfer the following amounts from the Contingent 

Expenditures and Grant Account No. 91050-7041 to various department accounts as 
shown on the attached table. 

C. Ratify poll to approve United Way individual assistance agreement for 
Hurricane Helene Flood victims 

D. Ratify poll to increase an IT phone stipend from $50 to $100 monthly 
E. Consider a refund of $18,718.00 to Oxford Square Virginia LP for 

overpayment  
 

 

5



 

BOS Meeting     *     February 4, 2025     *     Page 3 
 

    
Consent Calendar Items 

February 4, 2025 Meeting 
REVISED 

 
 
Source        Check #       To Acct    Amt       Description 

VaCorp 632038 32010-8105 $36,378.00 1987 Spartan VIN 5217 
damage 

Angie Christian 5791 035600-8109-15 $15.00 Project Lifesaver 
donation 

Timothy G. 
Honaker 

1986 035600-8109-15 $45.00 Project Lifesaver 
donation 

VaCorp 633218 31020-6009 $1306.97 TCSO vehicle repair 
Natasha Hunt 5019 73010-1150 $200.00 TCPL payroll 

reimbursement 
VAWSMRA 1003 31020-6010 $500.00 DARE donation 

Dominion Auto  31020-8105 $3027.00 Sale of TCSO vehicle 
Dominion Auto  31020-8101 $8903.00 Sale of TCSO vehicle 
Dominion Auto  31020-6009 $23.000.00 Sale of TCSO vehicle 
Bedford County 9090380 31020-5510 $647.80 ICAC class 

reimbursement 
VaCorp 633698 31020-6009 $2512.35 TCSO 2014 Taurus repair 
C of VA 25923949 31020-5510 $120.00 TCSO meeting 

reimbursement 
VaCorp 633209  035600-3310-1 $16335.45 Storm repair to tower 

site 
VaCorp 635936 32010-6009 $6231.51 AVVFD pumper truck 

repair VIN 2176 
CMCS 246718 31020-1150 $1191.30 CITAC reimbursement 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

6



 

BOS Meeting     *     February 4, 2025 minutes     *     Page 4 
 

DEPARTMENT REPORTS 
Engineering – Kenneth Dunford 
New landfill cell 
Mr. Dunford announced that the new cell is 2/3 complete as of this date and can be used for waste disposal.  He 
stated that waste diversion can be stopped within the week.  Supervisor Gillespie thanked Mr. Dunford for his 
hard work on the landfill project. 

  
Landfill waste diversion 
Upon motion of Supervisor Hrovatic, seconded by Supervisor Plaster and adopted by a vote of 5 to 0, with all 
members present and voting in favor thereof and no one against the same, the Tazewell County Board of 
Supervisors hereby approves $4260.20 to pay BWJPSA for diversion of waste to Pulaski landfill. 
 
Safer Streets grant 
Mr. Dunford asked the members of the Safer Streets grant committee to provide available dates so interviews 
can be scheduled. 
 
IT surplus 
Mr. Dunford provided a list of IT equipment that is being removed from service as part of the updates that are 
being performed on our current network.  He asked that the items be approved for surplus to allow the items to 
be either be discarded or sold on the www.deals.gov website.  The Chairman asked that the list of items be 
made a part of the record of this meeting.  A copy is available at the County Administration Office, 197 Main 
Street, Tazewell, Virginia 24651. 
 
Upon motion of Supervisor Presley, seconded by Supervisor Gillespie and adopted by a vote of 5 to 0, with all 
members present and voting in favor thereof and no one against the same, the Tazewell County Board of 
Supervisors hereby approves the list of IT equipment for surplus and sale or discard. 
 
Convenience stations 
Supervisor Gillespie asked Mr. Dunford to evaluate the Thompson Valley convenience center and see if there 
could be an additional dumpster there or whether the current arrangement might be altered for better use.  Mr. 
Dunford advised he will need to confer with Capital Watse regarding the matter. 
 
Brian Earls precinct update 
Mr. Earls approached the Board with a request to move the Mundytown polling location.  He stated that issues 
have arisen with the current Mundytown polling location regarding availability of the portion of the building 
used on Election Day.  Mr. Earls’ office has secured a convenient alternate location ¾ miles from the current 
location, which is a new building and ADA compliant. 
 
Supervisor Cruey asked Mr. Earls whether there is a location more central to the Baptist Valley area.  Mr. Earls 
stated that the new location is merely ¾ mile from the old location and has a better building and parking area 
than the current location. 
 
Upon motion of Supervisor Cruey, seconded by Supervisor Presley and adopted by a vote of 4 to 0, with all 
members present, Supervisor Gillespie abstaining and no one against the same, the Tazewell County Board of 
Supervisors hereby approves holding a public hearing in March and April 2025 regarding moving the 
Mundytown polling location to Adria Road. 
 

7

http://www.deals.gov/


 

BOS Meeting     *     February 4, 2025     *     Page 5 
 

County Attorney, Chase Collins, confirmed with Mr. Earls that these requested changes do not cause any voter 
to travel more than 20 minutes to their respective polling location nor are there any inconveniences to Mr. Earls’ 
office staff. 
 
The County Administrator recommended that a rental/lease agreement be in place for each polling location 
prior to actually making the move. 
 
Mr. Earls explained that the current Amonate polling location presents some safety concerns regarding a slick 
surface at the entry of the building and other issues of disrepair regarding the building, which is now only used 
as a polling location.  He stated there is also considerable expense for the telephone requirement at that location.  
Mr. Earls suggested that the Amonate polling location be closed and voting be diverted to the Bandy location 
and the Mundytown location, based upon where the Amonate voters’ residence is located.  He stated that the is 
no additional travel time or distance for the Amonate voters. 
 
Supervisor Cruey asked if other locations withing the Amonate community could be considered, particularly 
church buildings.  Mr. Earls responded that parking areas at the churches are some distance from the buildings 
themselves. 
 
Upon motion of Supervisor Cruey, seconded by Supervisor Presley and adopted by a vote of 5 to 0, with all 
members present and voting in favor thereof and no one against the same, the Tazewell County Board of 
Supervisors hereby approves holding a public hearing in March and April 2025 regarding moving the 
Mundytown polling location and closing the Amonate polling location and divert Amonate voters to Bandy and 
Mundytown polling locations. 
 

EXECUTIVE/CLOSED MEETING – 4:48 pm 
Upon motion of Supervisor Gillespie, seconded by Supervisor Cruey and adopted by a vote of 5 to 0, with all 
members present and voting in favor thereof, the Board enters into an Executive/Closed meeting and invites all 
persons necessary to conduct business in this session, pursuant to Virginia Code Section 2.2-3711. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
RETURN/CERTIFICATION/REPORT OF ACTION – 6:15 pm 

The Board of Supervisors returned to public session and Supervisor Hrovatic read the following certification: 
 

CERTIFICATION OF 
EXECUTIVE/CLOSED MEETING 

TAZEWELL COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
WHEREAS, the Tazewell County Board of Supervisors has convened an executive/closed meeting on this date 
pursuant to an affirmative vote and in accordance with The Virginia Freedom of Information Act; and 

Executive/Closed Meeting – Pursuant to Virginia Code Section 2.2-3711 

A(  7)  Discussion regarding diabetes prescription cost litigation 
A(  5)  Potential new business or expansion:  Project FIND  
A(29) Contract negotiations regarding landfill construction 
A(29) Contract negotiations w/ Springville FD building engineer 

8



 

BOS Meeting     *     February 4, 2025 minutes     *     Page 6 
 

 
WHEREAS, 2.2-3711 of the Code of Virginia requires a certification by the Board of Supervisors that such 
executive/closed meeting was conducted in conformity with Virginia law; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Tazewell County Board of Supervisors hereby certifies that, 
to the best of each member's knowledge, (i) that only public business matters lawfully exempted from open 
meeting requirements by Virginia law were discussed in the executive/closed meeting to which this certification 
resolution applies, and (ii) only such public business matters as were identified in the motion convening the 
closed meeting were heard, discussed or considered by the Tazewell County Board of Supervisors. The 
Chairman called for a roll call vote with the following votes hereby recorded. 
 
The Chair called for a roll call vote on the Certification: 

Ayes: Five (5) 
Nays: None (0) 
Absent: None (0) 
Absent during vote: None (0) 
Report of Action: One (1) 
 

ACTION FOLLOWING EXECUTIVE SESSION 
Upon motion of Supervisor Gillespie, seconded by Supervisor Hrovatic and adopted by a vote of 5 to 0, with 
all members present and voting in favor thereof and no one against the same, the Tazewell County Board of 
Supervisors hereby approves funding the Tazewell County Industrial Development Authority the amount of 
$125,000.000 for Project FIND, dependent upon (1) the IDA match said funding for Project FIND; (2) Project 
FIND executing a lease with the IDA for Bluestone Industrial Park shell building pursuant to the terms 
negotiated between them; and (3) final legal review. 
 
Mr. Young announced that time did not permit all topics be addressed in the first executive session and asked 
that all three (3) personnel issues be taken up in the second executive session as indicated on the original agenda. 
 

PUBLIC HEARINGS 
Ordinance exempting military/police K9 officer from rabies tag fee  
The Chairman called to order a public hearing that was duly advertised according to law for an ordinance to 
exempt military/police K9 officers from rabies tag fee in Tazewell County. 
 
 Chase Collins, County Attorney, explained the purpose of the public hearing. 
 
The Chairman asked for clarification regarding whether the K9 officer be retired, active or either.  Mr. Collins 
stated that the ordinance is for either active or retired K9 officers. 
 
The Chairman called for public comments from the floor.   
 
The Chairman called a second and third time for additional public comments from the floor.  Hearing 
none, the Chairman closed the public hearing.   

Upon motion of Supervisor Cruey, seconded by Supervisor Hrovatic and adopted by a vote of 5 to 0, with all 
members present and voting in favor thereof and no one against the same, the Tazewell County Board of 
Supervisors hereby approves an ordinance exempting military/police K9 officer from rabies tag fee.   

9



 

BOS Meeting     *     February 4, 2025     *     Page 7 
 

 
SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS 
Chief Barry Brooks – fire protection presentation 
This matter is deferred until the March 4, 2025 meeting. 
 
Graham High School Cheerleaders resolution 
This resolution was tabled until the March 4, 2025 meeting 
 
Christina Shinall resolution 
Supervisor Cruey advised that Ms. Shinall is currently hospitalized but stated he wished to proceed with the 
reading and vote of the resolution so it can be presented to Ms. Shinall at a later date. 
 
Upon motion of Supervisor Cruey, seconded by Supervisor Presley and adopted by a vote of 5 to 0, with all 
members present and voting in favor thereof and no one against the same, the Tazewell County Board of 
Supervisors hereby approves a resolution honoring Christina Shinall for her service to TCSO as a dispatcher.   
 
Denny Hayes/Kayla Fallon – veteran equine program 
Mr. Hayes presented information regarding the need for a veteran’s equine program as an avenue for veteran 
counselling/therapy.  Mr. Young suggested that Cavitts Creek is an ideal location for the project and requested 
to meet with Mr. Hayes and Dave White at the location for further evaluation. 
 
Jeff Buchanan – VDOT snow removal 

Erica Miller, VDOT Administrator for the Lebanon residency, presented information regarding snow removal 
services provided by VDOT. 

 
Upon motion of Supervisor Cruey, seconded by Supervisor Plaster and adopted by a vote of 5 to 0, with all 
members present and voting in favor thereof and no one against the same, the Tazewell County Board of 
Supervisors hereby approves temporarily suspending Roberts Rules of Order so that the agenda may be 
addressed out of order for efficiency.   
 
CITIZEN COMMENTS – SCHEDULED 
Robert Carlson, North Tazewell, Virginia spoke regarding toxic chemicals associated with solar panels. 

 
CITIZEN COMMENTS – UNSCHEDULED 
 
 
ADMINISTRATIVE/FINANCIAL/COUNTY PROJECTS UPDATE 
Consider extending State of Emergency until March 4, 2025 
County Administrator, Eric Young, advised that State of Emergency is no longer necessary and asked that it be 
permitted to expire on this date. 
 
Storm recovery update 

Landfill update 
Addressed in Mr. Dunford’s report. 
 
Repair/removal of dilapidated structures 

10



 

BOS Meeting     *     February 4, 2025 minutes     *     Page 8 
 

Mr. Young shared information regarding a meeting he recently attended in Bluefield, Virginia addressing 
dilapidated structures.  He explained that $_____ will be appropriated in the upcoming budget to address the 
situation in Tazewell County. 
 
Consider acceptance of dog/cat sterilization funds from DMV 
Upon motion of Supervisor Plaster, seconded by Supervisor Presley and adopted by a vote of 5 to 0, with all 
members present and voting in favor thereof and no one voting against the same, the Tazewell County Board 
of Supervisors hereby approves accepting a donation from DMV from Animal Friendly license plate purchases 
for which the proceeds will be used for spay/neuter of animals adopted from the Tazewell County Animal 
Shelter. 
 
Consider donation of $50K from apparatus line item to BVVFD for purchase of fire truck 
Upon motion of Supervisor Plaster, seconded by Supervisor Cruey and adopted by a vote of 5 to 0, with all 
members present and voting in favor thereof and no one voting against the same, the Tazewell County Board 
of Supervisors hereby approves ___ 
 
Consider surplus of 1987 Spartan Gladiator Grumman VIN 159AT6D01HC185217 
Upon motion of Supervisor Cruey, seconded by Supervisor Presley and adopted by a vote of 5 to 0, with all 
members present and voting in favor thereof and no one voting against the same, the Tazewell County Board 
of Supervisors hereby approves ___ 
 
Consider accepting donation from Town of Bluefield 
Upon motion of Supervisor Cruey, seconded by Supervisor Presley and adopted by a vote of 5 to 0, with all 
members present and voting in favor thereof and no one voting against the same, the Tazewell County Board 
of Supervisors hereby approves ___ 
 
Consider holding a public hearing to establish the real property tax rate for 2025 
Upon motion of Supervisor Hrovatic, seconded by Supervisor Cruey and adopted by a vote of 5 to 0, with all 
members present and voting in favor thereof and no one voting against the same, the Tazewell County Board 
of Supervisors hereby approves a ___ 

 

IDA member attendance 

 

State meals tax authorization 

 

Consider potential earmark applications 

 

Consider terminating custodial contract 
Mr. Young explained that the quality of work provided by the current cleaning company has diminished and 
requested to terminate the contract with that company and use current part-time county custodial staff to provide 

11



 

BOS Meeting     *     February 4, 2025     *     Page 9 
 

cleaning services to the administration building, Commonwealth Attorney offices and the building official’s 
offices. 
 
Upon motion of Supervisor Presley, seconded by Supervisor Cruey and adopted by a vote of 4 to 0, with all 
members present, Supervisor Gillespie abstaining and no one voting against the same, the Tazewell County 
Board of Supervisors hereby approves terminating the current custodial contract with Sparkle & Shine and 
instead use current part-time county custodial staff to provide cleaning services to the administration building, 
Commonwealth Attorney offices and the building official’s offices. 
 
Opioid Abuse Abatement Committee update 
 
Consider advertising for natural gas extension feasibility study 
 
Airport Agreeemtnt 
 
Convenience stations 
 
 
 
Appointments 
Fire/Rescue Board 

  This matter is deferred until the March 4, 2025 meeting. 
 

Tourism 
  This matter is deferred until the March 4, 2025 meeting. 

 
Workforce Investment Board 
Mr. Young explained that Supervisor Cruey has become overloaded with multiple committee/board 
commitments and has asked that he be removed from the Workforce Investment Board and another BOS 
member take his place. 
 
Upon motion of Supervisor Gillespie, seconded by Supervisor Cruey and adopted by a vote of 5 to 0, with all 
members present and voting in favor thereof and no one voting against the same, the Tazewell County Board 
of Supervisors hereby approves appointing Shanna Plaster to serve on the Workforce Investment Board. 
 
 

BOARD CONCERNS 
Supervisor Gillespie 
Supervisor Gillespie stated he feels the Board has explored some good plans for solving the trash problem. 
 
Supervisor Presley 
 
Supervisor Plaster 
Supervisor Plaster expressed her gratitude to the volunteer firemen that came to help pump water away from 
Richlands Middle School and helped prevent flood damage to the new gym floor. 
 

12



 

BOS Meeting     *     February 4, 2025 minutes     *     Page 10 
 

Supervisor Hrovatic 
 
Supervisor Cruey 
 
 
 

EXECUTIVE/CLOSED MEETING – 8:10 pm 
Upon motion of Supervisor Cruey, seconded by Supervisor Plaster and adopted by a vote of 5 to 0, with all 
members present and voting in favor thereof, the Board enters into an Executive/Closed meeting and invites all 
persons necessary to conduct business in this session, pursuant to Virginia Code Section 2.2-3711. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

RETURN/CERTIFICATION/REPORT OF ACTION – _9:05 pm 
The Board of Supervisors returned to public session and Supervisor Hrovatic read the following certification: 
 

CERTIFICATION OF 
EXECUTIVE/CLOSED MEETING 

TAZEWELL COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
WHEREAS, the Tazewell County Board of Supervisors has convened an executive/closed meeting on this date 
pursuant to an affirmative vote and in accordance with The Virginia Freedom of Information Act; and 
 
WHEREAS, 2.2-3711 of the Code of Virginia requires a certification by the Board of Supervisors that such 
executive/closed meeting was conducted in conformity with Virginia law; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Tazewell County Board of Supervisors hereby certifies that, 
to the best of each member's knowledge, (i) that only public business matters lawfully exempted from open 
meeting requirements by Virginia law were discussed in the executive/closed meeting to which this certification 
resolution applies, and (ii) only such public business matters as were identified in the motion convening the 
closed meeting were heard, discussed or considered by the Tazewell County Board of Supervisors. The 
Chairman called for a roll call vote with the following votes hereby recorded. 
 
The Chair called for a roll call vote on the Certification: 

Ayes: Five (5) 
Nays: None (0) 
Absent: None (0) 
Absent during vote: None (0) 
Report of Action: None (0) 

 
OTHER BUSINESS 
 

Executive/Closed Meeting – Pursuant to Virginia Code Section 2.2-3711 
A(1)  Personnel in Administration 
A(1)  Personnel in Administration 
A(1)  Personnel in Administration 

 

13



 

BOS Meeting     *     February 4, 2025     *     Page 11 
 

  ADJOURN 
Upon motion of Supervisor Cruey, seconded by Supervisor Presley and adopted by a vote of 5 to 0 with all 
members present and voting in favor thereof and no one voting against the same, the Tazewell County Board 
of Supervisors hereby adjourns until Tuesday, March 4, 2025 at 4:00 pm. 
 
A copy teste: 

 
 

Aaron Gillespie, Chairman 

14



15



16



    
Consent Calendar Items 
March 4, 2025 Meeting 

 
 

 
Source        Check #       To Acct    Amt       Description 

Abingdon Auto 
Auction 

141374 31020-6011 $4140.00 TCSO sale of 2006 
Fontaine trailer 

Abingdon Auto 
Auction 

141373 31020-6009 $3600.00 Sale of 2007 generator 

Abingdon Auto 
Auction 

101375 31020-6009 $3060.00 TCSO sale of 1901 Army 
item 

Library of Virginia EDI 
82570136 

21060-6021 $23486.00 Grant for deed book 
preservation 

Town of Cedar 
Bluff 

6629 31020-6011 $1310.00 Reimbursement to TCSO 
for equipment 

 
DOC 

 31020-5510 $16040.13 TCSO extradition 
reimbursements 

  

17



 

HGS, LLC, a company of
Resource Environmental Solutions, LLC
6575 West Loop South Suite 300
Bellaire TX 77401 United States
P: (225) 372-6108

Invoice
#IN52410

February 10, 2025

IN52410

1 of 2

Bill To

Amount Due: $22,645.00

Tazewell County Virginia
197 Main Street
Tazwell VA 24651
United States

Project Project Manager Billing Period
PRJ111834 CFPF-24-04-32 Richlands ES Joe Caterino Jr (jcaterino@res.us) Jan 2025

PO # Attn Delivery Email
Eric Young, Esq., Chase D 
Collins, Esq.

eyoung@tazewellcounty.org; 
chase.collins@tazewellcounty.org

Task: Data Collection

Hours Rate Amount
Restoration Designer SR

Joe Caterino Jr 16.50 273.00 4,560.50

Total Labor 16.50 4,560.50

Fee
Jan 27 - 31 Data Collection and invoice summary - Charlie Westbrook Program Manager 2 hrs at $250.00 per hour 500.00

Jan 6 - 10 Data Collection and project initiation - Charlie Westbrook Program Manager 2.5 hrs at $250.00 per hour 625.00

Jan 13 - 17 Data Collection and County Coordination - Charlie Westbrook Program Manager 1.5 hrs at $250.00 per 
hour

375.00

Jan 20 - 24 Data Collection and team coordination - Charlie Westbrook Program Manager 1 hrs at $250.00 per hour 250.00

Total Fees 1,750.00

Total this Task $6,310.50

Task: Hydrologic Study

Hours Rate Amount
Engineer IV

Kyra Arnold 1.00 210.00 210.00

Restoration Designer SR

Joe Caterino Jr 31.00 273.00 8,577.00

GIS-CAD I

Craig Caterino 24.00 100.00 2,400.00

Engineer III

Kyra Arnold 15.25 142.00 2,165.50

GIS-CAD II

Taey Duong 10.50 122.00 1,281.00

Total Labor 81.75 14,633.50

18



 

HGS, LLC, a company of
Resource Environmental Solutions, LLC
6575 West Loop South Suite 300
Bellaire TX 77401 United States
P: (225) 372-6108

Invoice
#IN52410

February 10, 2025

IN52410

2 of 2

Total this Task $14,633.50

Task: Study Existing Conditions

Hours Rate Amount
Engineer III

Kyra Arnold 1.25 142.00 177.50

Total Labor 1.25 177.50

Total this Task $177.50

Task: Develop SWM Alternatives

Hours Rate Amount
Restoration Designer SR

Joe Caterino Jr 5.50 277.00 1,523.50

Total Labor 5.50 1,523.50

Total this Task $1,523.50

 
 

Invoice Total $22,645.00

Remit Address Questions
All checks should be mailed to:
HGS, LLC
6575 West Loop South Suite 300
Bellaire, TX 77401

Contact — receivables@res.us
   - Banking information for ACH 
payments
   - Send all payment remittance advice
   - W9
   - Past due invoice copies

Contact — jcaterino@res.us
   - COI Requests
   - Project related questions or 
concerns

19



 

HGS, LLC, a company of
Resource Environmental Solutions, LLC
6575 West Loop South Suite 300
Bellaire TX 77401 United States
P: (225) 372-6108

Invoice
#IN52400

February 10, 2025

IN52400

1 of 2

Bill To

Amount Due: $11,236.00

Tazewell County Virginia
197 Main Street
Tazwell VA 24651
United States

Project Project Manager Billing Period
PRJ111836 CFPF-24-04-65 Bluefield Joe Caterino Jr (jcaterino@res.us) Jan 2025

PO # Attn Delivery Email
Chase D Collins, Esq., Eric 
Young, Esq.

chase.collins@tazewellcounty.org; 
eyoung@tazewellcounty.org

Task: Data Collection

Hours Rate Amount
Restoration Designer SR

Joe Caterino Jr 13.00 277.00 3,601.00

Total Labor 13.00 3,601.00

Fee
Jan 27 -31 Data collection and project initiation. Charlie Westbrook, Program Manager, 1.5-hrs at $250.00 per hour 375.00

Jan 13 -17 Data collection and project initiation. Charlie Westbrook, Program Manager, 2-hrs at $250.00 per hour 500.00

Total Fees 875.00

Total this Task $4,476.00

Task: Study Existing Conditions

Hours Rate Amount
Engineer III

Joshua Leibensperger 32.00 142.00 4,544.00

Restoration Designer SR

Joe Caterino Jr 8.00 277.00 2,216.00

Total Labor 40.00 6,760.00

Total this Task $6,760.00

 
 

Invoice Total $11,236.00

20



 

HGS, LLC, a company of
Resource Environmental Solutions, LLC
6575 West Loop South Suite 300
Bellaire TX 77401 United States
P: (225) 372-6108

Invoice
#IN52411

February 10, 2025

IN52411

1 of 2

Bill To

Amount Due: $12,123.00

Tazewell County Virginia
197 Main Street
Tazwell VA 24651
United States

Project Project Manager Billing Period
PRJ111835 CFPF-24-04-61 Bottom Road Study Joe Caterino Jr (jcaterino@res.us) Jan 2025

PO # Attn Delivery Email
Eric Young, Esq., Chase D 
Collins, Esq.

eyoung@tazewellcounty.org; 
chase.collins@tazewellcounty.org

Task: Baseline and Initial Conditions Review

Hours Rate Amount
Restoration Designer SR

Joe Caterino Jr 11.50 277.00 3,185.50

Total Labor 11.50 3,185.50

Total this Task $3,185.50

Task: Hydrologic Study

Hours Rate Amount
Engineer III

Joshua Leibensperger 21.00 142.00 2,982.00

Restoration Designer SR

Joe Caterino Jr 18.50 277.00 5,124.50

Total Labor 39.50 8,106.50

Total this Task $8,106.50

Task: Study Existing Conditions

Hours Rate Amount
Restoration Designer SR

Joe Caterino Jr 3.00 277.00 831.00

Total Labor 3.00 831.00

Total this Task $831.00

21



 

HGS, LLC, a company of
Resource Environmental Solutions, LLC
6575 West Loop South Suite 300
Bellaire TX 77401 United States
P: (225) 372-6108

Invoice
#IN52411

February 10, 2025

IN52411

2 of 2

 
 

Invoice Total $12,123.00

Remit Address Questions
All checks should be mailed to:
HGS, LLC
6575 West Loop South Suite 300
Bellaire, TX 77401

Contact — receivables@res.us
   - Banking information for ACH 
payments
   - Send all payment remittance advice
   - W9
   - Past due invoice copies

Contact — jcaterino@res.us
   - COI Requests
   - Project related questions or 
concerns

22



23



 
A RESOLUTION COMMENDING 
Christina “Chrissy” Kaye Shinall 

 
WHEREAS, Christina “Chrissy” Kaye Shinall is a 1986 graduate of Richlands High School, a 
1988 graduate of Southwest Virgina Community College and a lifelong resident of Tazewell 
County, Virginia; 

WHEREAS, Christna “Chrissy” Kaye Shinall began her service to the Tazewell County Sheriff’s 
Office on 3 February 1997 as a dispatcher and has seen dispatch technology evolve dramatically 
throughout the years from using a telephone handset to the current IP based technology; 
 
WHEREAS, Christina “Chrissy” Kaye Shinall completed the Southwest Virginia Criminal Justice 
Academy for Basic Dispatch, the Association of Public Safety Communications Office 
International, Inc. Institute Telecommunicator Training Program and was the first EMD-trained 
dispatcher for the Tazewell County Sheriff’s Office, having completed that training through the 
National Communication Institute in February 1997; 
 
WHEREAS, Christina “Chrissy” Kaye Shinall was awarded Tazewell County Sheriff’s Office 
Dispatcher of the Year in 2015 and 2024 based on her outstanding work and commitment to 
Tazewell County; 
 
WHEREAS, Christina “Chrissy” Kaye Shinall has served in other roles in the community as well, 
including volunteering as an EMT for Richlands Rescue Squad from 1994-1999, working as an 
EMT for Old Dominion Ambulance Service, as an EVOC-trained driver for EMS and an EMT 
evaluator for a total of 10 years’ service in EMS.  
 
WHEREAS, the County of Tazewell wishes to recognize Christina “Chrissy” Kaye Shinall for her 
dedication to the Tazewell County Sheriff’s Office and her community; 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Tazewell County Board of Supervisors hereby 
commends Christina “Chrissy” Kaye Shinall her distinguished accomplishments and service to 
Tazewell County. 
 
Presented this the 4th day of February 2025.  
  

Kyle Cruey, Vice Chair 
Shanna Plaster, Member 
Chuck Presley, Member 
Andy Hrovatic, Member 

 
 

________________________________  ____________________________________ 
Aaron Gillespie, Chairman    C. Eric Young, County Administrator 

24



VIRGINIA:  AT AN REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF TAZEWELL COUNTY, 
VIRGINIA HELD AT THE COUNTY ADMINISTRATION BUILDING, LOCATED AT 197 MAIN STREET, IN THE 
TOWN OF TAZEWELL, VA, 24651, ON THE 7TH DAY OF JANUARY, 2025, THE FOLLOWING RESOLUTION 
WAS ADOPTED, UPON A MOTION AND SECOND: 
 
Resolution No.: 25-001      Date:  March 4, 2025 
 

RESOLUTION HONORING THE GRAHAM HIGH SCHOOL COMPETITION CHEER TEAM 
 
WHEREAS, the 2024 Graham High School Competition Cheer Team (hereafter, “GHS Cheer”) is comprised 

of the following members: 
 
Team Roster         Coaches 
 
Danaylla Coleman   Aubrey Marrs    Andrea Mitchem  
Bella Collins    Addison Mitchem    Leah Plott 
Ella Dales    Joselyn Pruitt 
Hayleigh Fitzpatrick   Sophia Robinson 
Annie Goldsworthy   Sophie Scarberry 
Palyn Goodson    Leah Sluss 
Isabella Hernandez   Adysen Smith 
Gabby Kaklis    Cydney Spurgeon 
Morgan Leedy    Reagan Tolley 

 
WHEREAS, GHS Cheer competed in three (3) regular season competitions in the Roanoke Valley, Lynchburg, 

and Pulaski, where GHS Cheer placed first (1st) in all competitions; 
 
WHEREAS, GHS Cheer competed in the Region C/D Championship in October 2024, where GHS Cheer 

placed first (1st) and claimed the Region C/D Championship, allowing GHS Cheer to advance to the VHSL Class 2 
Championship in Richmond, Virginia; 

 
WHEREAS, GHS Cheer competed in the VHSL Class 2 Championship on November 8-9, 2024, where GHS 

Cheer won the VHSL Class 2 Championship, scoring twenty (20) points higher than any other competing school; 
 
WHEREAS, GHS Cheer became the first athletic program in the history of Graham High School to win 

consecutive team VHSL championships; and  
 

WHEREAS, GHS Cheer has established a legacy of uncompromised success, building civic pride throughout 
the Eastern District and the entirety of Tazewell County, Virginia (hereafter, “the County”) while providing the County’s 
youth a sterling example of academic and athletic excellence to aspire to and to be inspired by; 

 
NOW THEREFORE, upon motion of Supervisor Presley, seconded by Supervisor _________________, the 

Tazewell County Board of Supervisors hereby RESOLVES to honor GHS Cheer for earning the 2024 VHSL Class 2 
Championship, the program’s second (2nd) consecutive VHSL Championship; GHS commending all athletes and 
coaches on exemplary conduct; and offering the best wishes of the Tazewell County Board of Supervisors in all future 
endeavors.  This Resolution is adopted this 4th day of March, 2025. 

 
ATTEST: 

 
 

              
Aaron M. Gillespie     C. Eric Young 
Chairman – Board of Supervisors    Tazewell County Administrator 

 
RECORDED VOTE: 

 
MEMBERS PRESENT:  Cruey, Gillespie, Hrovatic, Plaster, Presley 
MEMBERS ABSENT: NONE 
AYES:    Cruey, Gillespie, Hrovatic, Plaster, Presley 
NAYS:   NONE 
ABSTENTIONS:   NONE 

25



PROCLAMATION 
Whereas, March is American Red Cross Month, a special time to recognize and thank 
our heroes - those who volunteer, donate blood, take life-saving courses or provide 
financial donations to support an organization whose mission is to help those in need; 
and 

Whereas, we would like to remember those who help all of us here in the County of 
Tazewell by giving their time to help their neighbor and thank our heroes - our volunteers, 
blood donors, class takers and financial supporters who help us assist those in need; and 

Whereas, in the County of Tazewell, the Red Cross works tirelessly through its nine 
employees and 640 volunteers to help when disaster strikes, when someone needs 
lifesaving skills or the comfort of a helping hand. It provides 24-hour support to members 
of the military, veterans, and their families, and provides training in CPR, aquatics safety, 
and first aid; and 

Whereas, across the country, the American Red Cross responds to nearly 70,000 
disasters a year. It provides some 400,000 services to military members, veterans and 
civilians, collects and distributes about 40 percent of the nation’s blood supply and trains 
more than seven million people in first aid, water safety and other life-saving skills every 
year; and 

Whereas, our community depends on the American Red Cross, which relies on donations 
of time, money and blood to fulfill its humanitarian mission. Despite these challenging 
economic times, the American Red Cross continues to offer help and comfort to those in 
need. 

NOW, Therefore, on behalf of the Board of Supervisors of Tazewell County, Virginia and 
all our citizens I do hereby proclaim the month of March 2025 as American Red Cross 
Month and I encourage all Americans to support this organization and its noble 
humanitarian mission: 

IN WITNESS WHEREAS, I have set my hand and caused the seal of the County of 
Tazewell to be affixed on this 4th day of March, 2025. 

Presented this the 4th day of March, 2025.  

Kyle Cruey, Vice Chair 
Shanna Plaster, Member 
Chuck Presley, Member 
Andy Hrovatic, Member 

 
 
________________________________  ______________________________ 
Aaron Gillespie, Chairman    C. Eric Young, County Administrator 

26



Ad Proof
This is the proof of your ad scheduled to run on the dates 
indicated below. Please proofread carefully and if changes 

are needed, contact us prior to deadline at  or email at 
treed@bdtonline.com.

DATE 02/17/25

Client:

TAZEWELL CO BD SUPERVISORS
197 MAIN ST
TAZEWELL , VA 24651-0000
(276) 988-7541

 
 Ad ID: 856022

 Sort Line: REAL PROPERTY TAXES

 Start: 02/19/25

 Stop: 02/26/25
 Complete 
 Schedule 02/19/25, 02/26/25

 Total Cost: $87.74

 # of Lines: 61

 Columns Wide: 1

 # of Inserts:  4

 Ad Taker: EBREHM

 Phone # 

 Email: treed@bdtonline.com

Publications: 
Bluefield Daily Telegraph

bdtonline.com

ACCOUNT NUMBER: 107395

PO Box 1599 ,
Bluefield , WV 24701
Phone: 304-327-2801 • Toll Free: 800-763-2459
Fax: 304-327-0433 www.bdtonline.com 

BLUEFIELD

DAILY TELEGRAPH

TAZEWELL COUNTY, VIRGINIA

NOTICE OF SETTING OF

REAL PROPERTY TAXES

   PLEASE TAKE NOTICE pur-
suant to Sections 58.1-3007 and 
58.1-3321 of the Code of Virginia 
(1950), as amended, that the Taze-
well County Board of Supervisors 
will hold a public hearing on March 
4, 2025 at 6:05 PM or as soon 
thereafter as may be practical, at 
the Tazewell County Administra-
tion Building, located at 197 Main 
Street, Tazewell, Virginia 24651, to 
consider public comment regarding 
a proposed Ordinance to Establish 
Real Property Taxes for FY 2025-
2026.

EFFECTIVE RATE: The Board 
of Supervisors of Tazewell Coun-
ty, Virginia proposes to adopt a tax 
rate of $0.58 per $100 of assessed 
value.  The proposed tax rate for 
FY 2025-2026 is the same as the 
current tax rate for FY 2024-2025.  
Individual property taxes will re-
main the same, depending upon 
the assessed value of real property.  
Any person wishing to speak at the 
hearing should appear at the time 
and place listed above to be heard.  
The Board may enact the Ordi-
nance immediately following the 
public hearing or may defer action 
to a later meeting held in the same 
location.

In compliance with the Americans 
with Disabilities Act, if you are phys-
ically disabled, hearing or visually 
impaired, and need special assis-
tance to participate in a meeting of 
the Board of Supervisors, please 
contact the County Administrator’s 
Office by telephone at (276) 385-
1208, by fax at (276) 988-4246, or 
by email at susan.jewell@tazewell-
county.org.  A notification of five (5) 
working days prior to the meeting 
will enable the County Adminis-
trator’s Office to make reasonable 
arrangements for those physically 
impaired to ensure their accessibili-
ty to the meeting.

Per Order of the 
Board of Supervisors of 
Tazewell County, Virginia.
By: C. Eric Young – 
County Administrator

27



Ad Proof
This is the proof of your ad scheduled to run on the dates 
indicated below. Please proofread carefully and if changes 

are needed, contact us prior to deadline at  or email at 
treed@bdtonline.com.

DATE 02/19/25

Client:

TAZEWELL CO BD SUPERVISORS
197 MAIN ST
TAZEWELL , VA 24651-0000
(276) 988-7541

 
 Ad ID: 856793

 Sort Line: PUBLIC HEARING ORDIN

 Start: 02/21/25

 Stop: 02/28/25
 Complete 
 Schedule 02/21/25, 02/28/25

 Total Cost: $107.26

 # of Lines: 77

 Columns Wide: 1

 # of Inserts:  4

 Ad Taker: EBREHM

 Phone # 

 Email: treed@bdtonline.com

Publications: 
Bluefield Daily Telegraph

bdtonline.com

ACCOUNT NUMBER: 107395

PO Box 1599 ,
Bluefield , WV 24701
Phone: 304-327-2801 • Toll Free: 800-763-2459
Fax: 304-327-0433 www.bdtonline.com 

BLUEFIELD

DAILY TELEGRAPH

TAZEWELL COUNTY BOARD OF 

SUPERVISORS

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING

   PLEASE TAKE NOTICE, pursu-
ant to Sections 15.2-1211 and 24.2-
305 et seq. of the Code of Virginia 
(1950), as amended, The Tazewell 
County Board of Supervisors (“the 
Board”) will hold a public hearing 
on March 4, 2025 at 6:10 PM, or as 
soon thereafter as may be heard, 
at the Tazewell County Administra-
tion Building, located at 197 Main 
Street, Tazewell, VA 24651, at 6:30 
PM, to consider public comment 
regarding a proposed Ordinance 
to Provide for the Closure of the 
Amonate Precinct within Tazewell 
County, Virginia, and Consolidation 
Thereof into the Bandy Precinct, 
Bishop Precinct, and Mundy Town 
Precinct, to Be Effective Immedi-
ately Pursuant to Sections 15.2-
1211, 15.2-1425, and 24.2-305 et 
seq. of the Code of Virginia (1950), 
as Amended.

The proposed Ordinance would 
close the Amonate Precinct effec-
tive immediately.  The voters so im-
pacted by the closure of the Amon-
ate Precinct would be assigned 
to the Bandy Precinct, Bishop 
Precinct, or Mundy Town Precinct, 
based upon the voters’ residences.  
The precinct locations for the Ban-
dy Precinct, Bishop Precinct, and 
Mundy Town Precinct would remain 
unchanged.  

The proposed Ordinance, includ-
ing, descriptions and maps of pro-
posed boundary adjustments, may 
be inspected at the Tazewell Coun-
ty Administration Building, located 
at 197 Main Street, Tazewell, VA 
24651.  The proposed Ordinance, 
including, descriptions and maps 
of proposed boundary adjustments, 
may be inspected at the Tazewell 
County Courthouse, located at 135 
Court Street, Tazewell, VA 24651.

In compliance with the Americans 
with Disabilities Act, if you are phys-
ically disabled, hearing or visually 
impaired, and need special assis-
tance to participate in a meeting of 
the Board of Supervisors, please 
contact the Tazewell County Ad-
ministrator’s Office by telephone at 
(276) 385-1208, by fax at (276) 988-
4246, or by email at susan.jewell@
tazewellcounty.org.  A notification 
of five (5) working days prior to the 
meeting will enable the Tazewell 
County Administrator’s Office to 
make reasonable arrangements for 
those physically impaired to ensure 
their accessibility to the meeting.

By Order of 
the Board of Supervisors of 
Tazewell County, Virginia
By: C. Eric Young, 
Tazewell County Administrator

28



Ad Proof
This is the proof of your ad scheduled to run on the dates 
indicated below. Please proofread carefully and if changes 

are needed, contact us prior to deadline at  or email at 
treed@bdtonline.com.

DATE 02/20/25

Client:

TAZEWELL CO BD SUPERVISORS
197 MAIN ST
TAZEWELL , VA 24651-0000
(276) 988-7541

 
 Ad ID: 856917

 Sort Line: RELOCATION/MUNDY TOW

 Start: 02/21/25

 Stop: 02/28/25
 Complete 
 Schedule 02/21/25, 02/28/25

 Total Cost: $89.00

 # of Lines: 63

 Columns Wide: 1

 # of Inserts:  4

 Ad Taker: EBREHM

 Phone # 

 Email: treed@bdtonline.com

Publications: 
Bluefield Daily Telegraph

bdtonline.com

ACCOUNT NUMBER: 107395

PO Box 1599 ,
Bluefield , WV 24701
Phone: 304-327-2801 • Toll Free: 800-763-2459
Fax: 304-327-0433 www.bdtonline.com 

BLUEFIELD

DAILY TELEGRAPH

TAZEWELL COUNTY BOARD OF 

SUPERVISORS

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE, pur-
suant to Section 24.2-305 et seq. 
of the Code of Virginia (1950), as 
amended, the Tazewell County 
Board of Supervisors (“the Board”) 
intends to consider An Ordinance 
Relocating the Polling Place for the 
Mundy Town Precinct (103) from 
S&K Welding to Adria Truck and 
Auto Repair, Inc. to Provide More 
Adequate Voting Facilities. The 
Ordinance would move the pre-
cinct location of the Mundy Town 
Precinct (103) from S&K Welding to 
Adria Truck and Auto Repair, Inc., 
located at 1727 Adria Road, North 
Tazewell, VA 24630.

The Board of Supervisors will 
hold a public hearing on March 4, 
2025 at the County Administration 
Building at 197 Main Street, Taze-
well, VA 24651 at 6:15 PM, or as 
soon thereafter as may be heard, 
to consider public comment regard-
ing this proposed An Ordinance 
Relocating the Polling Place for 
the Mundy Town Precinct (103) 
from S&K Welding to Adria Truck 
and Auto Repair, Inc. to Provide 
More Adequate Voting Facilities. 
Any person wishing to speak at the 
hearing should appear at the time 
and place listed above to be heard.

In compliance with the Ameri-
cans with Disabilities Act, if you 
are physically disabled, hearing or 
visually impaired, and need special 
assistance to participate in a meet-
ing of the Board, please contact  
the Tazewell County Adminis-
trator’s Office by telephone at  
(276) 385-1208, by fax at 
(276) 988-4246, or by email at  
susan.jewell@tazewellcounty.org.  
A notification of five (5) working 
days prior to the meeting will en-
able the Tazewell County Adminis-
trator’s Office to make reasonable 
arrangements for those physically 
impaired to ensure their accessibili-
ty to the meeting.

By Order of the 
Board of Supervisors of 
Tazewell County, Virginia
By: C. Eric Young, 
Tazewell County Administrator

29



Ad Proof
This is the proof of your ad scheduled to run on the dates 
indicated below. Please proofread carefully and if changes 

are needed, contact us prior to deadline at  or email at 
treed@bdtonline.com.

DATE 02/17/25

Client:

TAZEWELL CO BD SUPERVISORS
197 MAIN ST
TAZEWELL , VA 24651-0000
(276) 988-7541

 
 Ad ID: 856016

 Sort Line: TAZEWELL COUNTY BOAR

 Start: 02/19/25

 Stop: 02/26/25
 Complete 
 Schedule 02/19/25, 02/26/25

 Total Cost: $117.40

 # of Lines: 82

 Columns Wide: 1

 # of Inserts:  4

 Ad Taker: EBREHM

 Phone # 

 Email: treed@bdtonline.com

Publications: 
Bluefield Daily Telegraph

bdtonline.com

ACCOUNT NUMBER: 107395

PO Box 1599 ,
Bluefield , WV 24701
Phone: 304-327-2801 • Toll Free: 800-763-2459
Fax: 304-327-0433 www.bdtonline.com 

BLUEFIELD

DAILY TELEGRAPH

TAZEWELL COUNTY BOARD OF 

SUPERVISORS

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING

TAZEWELL COUNTY FOOD AND 

BEVERAGE TAX ORDINANCE

   PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that the 
Board of Supervisors of Tazewell 
County, Virginia (“the Board”), will 
conduct a public hearing on March 
4, 2025 at 6:20 PM, or as soon 
thereafter as may be practical, at 
the Tazewell County Administra-
tion Building, located at 197 Main 
Street, Tazewell, VA 24651, and 
hereby gives its intent to consider 
the Tazewell County Food and Bev-
erage Tax Ordinance.

The Board desires to bolster 
the provision of fire protection 
and emergency medical services 
(“EMS”) in Tazewell County, Virgin-
ia, as those services are essential 
to the health and welfare of the res-
idents of Tazewell County, Virginia.  
To achieve those ends, the Board 
desires to invest significant funding 
into capital expenditures and per-
sonnel to allow greater provision of 
fire protection and EMS.  Section 
58.1-3833 et seq. of the Code of 
Virginia (1950), as amended, autho-
rizes the governing bodies of coun-
ties to levy a food and beverage 
tax upon the sale and use of food 
and beverages by a restaurant, 
as “restaurant” is defined in Sec-
tion 35.1-1 of the Code of Virginia 
(1950), as amended.  The Board 
shall consider imposition of a tax 
of six (6) percent on the sales price 
of such food and beverages, with 
all revenues therefrom being used 
exclusively for the provision of fire 
protection and EMS.

All persons wishing to comment 
on the Ordinance are hereby invited 
to attend and state their views there-
on.  In compliance with the Ameri-
cans with Disabilities Act, if special 
assistance is needed to participate 
in a meeting of the Board of Super-
visors, please contact the County 
Administrator’s Office by telephone 
at (276) 385-1208, by facsimile 
at (276) 988-4246, or by email at  
susan.jewell@tazewellcounty.org.  
A notification of five (5) working 
days before the meeting will enable 
the County Administrator’s Office to 
make reasonable arrangements to 
ensure accessibility to the meeting.

A complete copy of the Ordinance 
is posted on the Tazewell County 
Circuit Court’s bulletin board on the 
second floor of the Tazewell County 
Courthouse, located at 135 Court 
Street, Tazewell, VA 24651.  A com-
plete copy of the Ordinance is also 
on file in the office of the County 
Administrator, located at 197 Main 
Street, Tazewell, VA 24651.

By Order of 
the Board of Supervisors of 
Tazewell County, Virginia
By: C. Eric Young, 
Tazewell County Administrator

30



31



Tazewell Baseball Boosters, Inc. 
P.O. Box 1393 

North Tazewell, Virginia 24630 
 
 

February 25, 2025 
 
 
Dear Mr. Gillespie and Mr. Cruey: 
 
On behalf of the Tazewell Baseball Program, I am writing you to request a donation from your 
district funds for baseball equipment and cleats for the Tazewell Varsity, JV, and Middle School 
baseball teams for the 2025 baseball season which is quickly approaching.  The first official day 
of practice for baseball and softball teams in Virginia was Monday, February 24th and games will 
start a few weeks after that.  Our baseball players have been working hard since pre-season 
workouts started several weeks ago and we have a dedicated group of young men in the program.    
 
According to our records, $750.00 was allocated from the Southern District Fund and $750.00 
was allocated from the Northern District Fund in 2023 for baseball equipment and cleats for the 
Varsity & JV teams, as well as for the Middle School baseball team.  
 
We would greatly appreciate it if you could provide the same donation to assist with the purchase 
of baseball equipment and cleats for the Tazewell Varsity, JV, and Middle School baseball 
teams.  Thank you very much for your past and current support of the Tazewell baseball program 
and the players who participate from Middle School though 12th grade.   
 
We sincerely appreciate all of the help and support that you always provide to the Tazewell 
baseball program.  Thank you in advance for your consideration of this financial request.  Please 
let me know if you have any questions or if you need further information regarding this donation 
request. 
 
 

Sincerely, 
 
       Brandon McDaniel 
       THS Head Baseball Coach 
 

32



33



TAZEWELL COUNTY FIRE-RESCUE, INC. BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
        (Two (2) Year Term) 
 
Jim Talbert, CVN/RNP      07-01-2024 06-30-2026 
PO Box 818 
Richlands, VA 24641 
(reappointed 6-4-2019) 
 
 
Michael Hymes       07-01-2019 06-30-2023 
PO Box 7 
Tazewell, VA  24651 
(fills expiring term of Kathern Dowdy) 
 
 
Frederick W. Harman      07-01-2020 06-30-2023 
201 East Main Street 
PO Box 523 
Tazewell, Virginia 24651 
988-5547 
(reappointed 6/2/20 for 2 yr. term) 
 

34



TAZEWELL COUNTY 
TOURISM DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE 

(Established 12-16-2003) 
        (Two (2) Year Term) 

SOUTHERN 

Susan Reeves       07-01-2024 06-30-2026 
728 Fincastle Tnpke 
Tazewell, VA 24651 
276-970-1780 
 
Beth Takach       07-01-2023 06-30-2025 
279 Richardson Drive 
Tazewell, VA 24651 
(Filled the expired term of Tammy Allison) 
 
EASTERN 
Lee Riffe       07-01-2022 06-30-2024 
215 Hockman Pike 
Bluefield, VA 24605 
304-320-9746 
leer17@verizon.net 
(replaced the expired term of Michael A. Brown) 
 
David Comer       07-01-2024 06-30-2026 
1046 Virginia Ave. 
Bluefield, VA 24605 
276-245-6065 
 
NORTHERN 
Dedra Cox       07-01-2023 06-30-2025 
263 Mission Church Road 
Bluefield, VA 24605 
304-320-4353 
dedracox38@yahoo.com 
(Appointed on 08-03-2021) 
(Fills the expired term of Roger Scarberry) 
  

35

mailto:leer17@verizon.net
mailto:dedracox38@yahoo.com


Warren Hinkle        07-01-2024 06-30-2026 
4432 Baptist Valley Rd. 
Cedar Bluff, VA 24609 
warrenhinkletcfp@gmail.com 
 

WESTERN 
Sarah Romeo        07-01-2023 06-30-2025 
612 Indian Paint Road 
Pounding Mill, VA 24637 
276-963-4993 
(Replaced the unexpired term of Linda Singleton) 
(Reappointed on 08-03-2021) 
 
Brad Ratliff        07-01-2024 06-30-2026 
1053 Cedar Valley Drive 
Cedar Bluff, VA 24609 
276-522- 
Email:   brad@ratlifflaw.net 
 
NORTHWESTERN 
Rick Wood        07-01-2023 06-30-2025 
226 Floyd Ave 
Richlands, VA 24641 
(Logan Plaster - resigned) 
 
Keshia Cole        07-01-2024 06-30-2026 
118 Coleman Lane 
Tazewell, VA 24651 
276-971-5338 
 

36



37



38


	ADP7CC5.tmp
	AGENDA APPROVED AS AMENDED
	CONSENT CALENDAR
	RETURN/CERTIFICATION/REPORT OF ACTION – 6:15 pm
	ACTION FOLLOWING EXECUTIVE SESSION
	Supervisor Gillespie stated he feels the Board has explored some good plans for solving the trash problem.
	Supervisor Presley
	Supervisor Hrovatic

	RETURN/CERTIFICATION/REPORT OF ACTION – _9:05 pm




